
Y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 
 

Lleoliad: 
Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Y Senedd 

 

 

 

Dyddiad: 
Dydd Iau, 8 Mawrth 2012  

 

Amser: 
13:30 

 

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth, cysylltwch â:  

Llinos Dafydd 
Clerc y Pwyllgor 
029 2089 8403 
HSCCommittee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

1. Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon   

2. Ymchwiliad undydd i wasanaethau cadeiriau olwyn yng Nghymru 
- tystiolaeth lafar (13.30 - 15.00)  

 
Safbwynt darparwr y GIG (13.30 - 14.15) (Tudalennau 1 - 25) 
HSC(4)-09-12 papur 1 

Helen Hortop, Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Aelodau Artiffisial a Chyfarpar, Bwrdd 

Iechyd Prifysgol Caerdydd a’r Fro  

Fiona Jenkins, Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol y Gwyddorau Therapïau ac Iechyd, 

Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Caerdydd a’r Fro 

Andrew Lloyd, Pennaeth Ansawdd a TG, Y Gwasanaeth Aelodau Artiffisial a 

Chyfarpar, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Caerdydd a’r Fro 

 

HSC(4)-09-12 papur 2 

Dr Maire Doran, Gwasanaeth Aelodau Artiffisial a Chyfarpar Gogledd Cymru 

Gareth Evans, Cyfarwyddwr Clinigol Perfformiad a Gwella, Canllawiau Ymarfer 

Clinigol Therapïau a Chymorth Clinigol, Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr 

 
 
 

Safbwynt y cynllunydd (14.15 - 15.00) (Tudalennau 26 - 36) 
HSC(4)-09-12 papur 3 

Dr Cerilan Rogers, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Arbenigol a Thrydyddol, 

Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus



Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Iechyd Arbenigol Cymru  

Mr Daniel Phillips, Cadeirydd, Bwrdd Partneriaeth Gwasanaeth Symudedd ac 

Ystum Corff Cymru Gyfan 

 

3. Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(vi) i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer eitem 4 (15.00)  

4. Ymchwiliad undydd i wasanaethau cadeiriau olwyn yng Nghymru 
- trafod y dystiolaeth (15.00 - 15.30)  



Health and Social Care Committee 

HSC(4)-09-12 paper 1 

One-day inquiry on wheelchair services in Wales – Evidence 
from the Artificial Limb and Appliance Service, Cardiff 

 
 

Background  
Heal th  Commiss ion Wales  [HCW] ,  now Welsh Hea l th  
Specia l is t  Serv ices  Commit tee  (WHSSC)  i s  responsible  for  
commissioning Ass is t ive  Technology from the Ar t i f i c ia l  
L imb and Appl iance  Serv ices  [ALAS]  for  people  res ident ,  
or  who are  reg is tered wi th  a  GP in  Wales.  In  l ine with 
NHS cr i ter ia ,  ALAS is  resourced to provide essentia l  
equipment whi lst  str iving to meet  l i festyle needs 
with in  a l located resource const ra ints .  ALAS of fers  a  
consis tent  and equi table  serv ice  to  people  in  Wales  who 
have  a  permanent  or  long-term impairment .  Short  
term d isab i l i ty  needs are  met  through a l ternat ive 
sources.  
 
ALAS is  essent ia l l y  a  communi ty  serv ice  prov iding 
serv ices  for  the whole  of  Wales .  C l in ica l  assessments 
and the  del ivery  and repai r  o f  equipment  are large ly  
done at  the user ’s  home,  school  or  local  hospi ta l  s i te .  
Users  do at tend ALAS for  specia l is t  assessment or  
because of  the  specia l is t  fac i l i t ies  such as  workshops,  
computer  a ided des ign technolog ies  and equipment,  
cast ing rooms,  phys iotherapy gym,  and walk ing t ra in ing 
fac i l i t ies .  
 
ALAS is  prov ided by  a  un ique col laborat ion between 
three  Local  Hea l th  Boards.  The three  ALAS centres 
[ALAC]  are  s i tuated in  Card i f f  (Card i f f  and Va le  UHB) ,  
Wrexham (  Bets i  Cadwal ladr  UHB)and Swansea(Aber tawe 
Bro  Morgannwg UHB) ,  work ing together  to  prov ide  an 
A l l-Wales serv ice.  
 

•  The Card i f f  Ar t i f ic ia l  L imb and Appl iance  Serv ice  
(ALAS)  serves a  populat ion of  2.2  mi l l ion,  south of  
L landr indod Wel ls ,  west  to  
Cer id ig ion/Pembrokeshire(south of  Aberystwyth)  
and east  to  South Powys of  whom approximate ly  
48,000 are wheelcha ir  users.  

•  The Wrexham ALAS serves  a  populat ion of  800,000 
nor th  of  L landr indod Wel ls ,west  to  Aberystwyth  and 
east  to  North  Powys of  whom approximately  18,000 
wheelchai r  users.  

Eitem 2a

Tudalen 1



•  The 1 s t  char t  be low g ives  a  break down of  the 
serv ices  provided by  Card i f f  ALAS,  the  2 n d  a  break 
down of  the 3  ALAS and 3  rehabi l i ta t ion 
engineer ing serv ices by s i te .  

Tudalen 2



 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*included in Prosthetic total 
 
 
ALAS service profile: 
 
Service Cardiff Wrexham Swansea 

Posture mobility 
/wheelchair 
service 

√ √  

Rehabilitation 
Engineering 

√  √ √ equipment 
funded by 
Cardiff 

Prosthetics √ √ √ 
Orbital 
prosthetics 

√   

EAT √   
Orthotics local 
not WHSSC 

√ √ √ 

 
 
 
The Card i f f  posture  and mobi l i ty  serv ices are supported 
by  Rehabi l i tat ion Engineer ing serv ices based 
respect ive ly  a t  Card i f f  and Swansea who provide 
bespoke solut ions  for  the  most  complex cases.  Funding 
for  these cases comes from the ALAS WHSSC budget .  
 
ALAS current ly  rece ives  an average of  800 referra ls  per  
month,  broken down as  fo l lows:  
 
 
Approx Total  referrals  a  year = 9340  
Per  month = 779 
of  which 58% are new refer ra ls  
  

Service Cardiff 
10 

Area 

Posture and Mobility 
[Wheelchair] 

49,693 S Wales 

Prosthetic 1,734 SE Wales 
Orbital Prosthetic 2,483 All Wales 
Electronic Assistive 
Technology Service (EAT). 

563 All Wales 

War Veterans Service 34* SE Wales 
Communication 
assessments 
Orthotics 

117 
 

10,000 

S Wales 
 
Cardiff and Vale 

Total 64,624  

Tudalen 3



 
 
By Pathway Type  
Standard  
Per  Year Approx = 4280  
per month 357  
46% of  a l l  re ferra ls  
  
Complex Postural  
Per  Year Approx = 2438  
per month = 203  
26% of  a l l  re ferra ls  
  
Technical  
Per  Year Approx = 1511  
per month = 125  
16% of  a l l  re ferra ls  
  
EPIOC (Electr i c  powered indoor /outdoor)  
Per  Year Approx = 569   
per month = 47  
6% of  a l l  re ferrals  
  
BER (Beyond economic repai r)  
Per  Year Approx = 545   
per month = 45  
6% of  a l l  re ferrals  
  
Fol lowing the  per iod of  the  2009 posture  mobi l i ty  
rev iew,  the  Minis ter  for  Heal th  and Socia l  care  repor ted 
that :  
 
The major i ty of  whee lcha ir  users  are  sat is f ied  wi th  the 
service .   Over  70% then rece ived the ir  wheelchairs  
w i th in  three  weeks .   Some people  wi th  complex  needs  
exper ienced longer  waits .  The  approach to service  
del ivery was not  un i form across Wales .   
 
She  noted that  there were current ly  var iable  (and 
somet imes s igni f icant )  bot t lenecks  in  the  supply  cha in 
process  resul t ing in  delays  between the  ra is ing of  a  
wheelchai r  prescr ipt ion and i ts  del ivery  to  the c l ient .  
A lso  that  across the  four  home nat ions,  Wales  provides 
i ts  serv ice  users  wi th  the  la rgest  range of  equipment,  
acknowledging that  th is  i s  a  del iberate s tra tegy  which 
enables  c l in ica l  needs to be  met  to  best  ef fec t ,  and 
maximis ing independence for  serv ice users.   
 
The Ar t i f i c ia l  L imb and Appl iance Serv ice  prov ide  a  
wheelchai r  serv ice  that  pr inc ipa l ly  meets  “heal th needs” ,  

Tudalen 4



that  i s  essent ia l  posture  and mobi l i ty  needs.  Serv ice 
users  often need to  have  the ir  w ider  requi rements  taken 
into  account  dur ing the  assessment  process  and every 
ef for t  i s  made to  accommodate  these  requi rements,  for  
example  an increasing number of  c l ients  who l ive  in 
local  author i ty  accommodat ion require mid whee l  dr ive 
power cha irs  because i t  g ives  a smal ler  turning c i rc le  
therefore i t  can be used in more compact  set t ings .   
 
A  qua l i ty  repai r  and maintenance serv ice  is  an  in t r ins ic  
and cr i t i ca l  par t  o f  the  wheelcha i r  serv ice,  and is  v i ta l  
for  a l l  c l ients .  The maintenance serv ice  in  South Wales 
was  then outsourced and had been subject  to  cr i t ic ism. 
I t  was subsequent ly  brought  in-house in February  2010.   
 
Shor t-term wheelchair  loans  ( less  than 6  months)  are 
not  funded through the  Ar t i f ic ia l  L imb and Appl iance 
Serv ice.  Current ly ,  most  c l ients ,  carers  and pract i t ioners 
re ly  on voluntary  agencies for  th is  serv ice.   
 
The Rehabi l i tat ion Engineer ing Uni ts  have  been 
responsib le  for  much development and innovat ion in 
th is  f ie ld,  both  loca l ly  and nat iona l ly .  They  are  a  c ruc ia l  
par t  of  the  whee lchair  serv ice  and look af ter  some of  
the most  complex c l ients.   
 
F rom this  Minis ter ia l  response came a  ser ies of  
recommendat ions  that  are noted and updated be low. 

 
Recommendation 1   
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government  ensures  that  
a  fu l l ,  nat ional  serv ice  speci f ica t ion be prepared,  
inc lud ing deta i ls  on the  serv ice’s  approach to jo int  
working wi th  other  organisat ions  and ind iv iduals ;  and 
informat ion on performance targets and moni tor ing 
systems.   

 
The Partnersh ip Board has  been estab l ished and 3 
meet ings  have so  far  taken p lace .  The  Board 
membersh ip  re f lects  the range of  ind iv idua l s  and 
organisat ions  involved in  serv ice  del ivery and use .  The 
development  of  a  serv ice  spec i f icat ion  and robust  key 
performance ind icators,  to  support  performance 
improvement,  are  speci f ied  in  the  Terms of  Reference 
and reported to  each Board meet ing .  Pr ior  to  the 
estab l ishment of  the  Board,  work was  undertaken in  
conjunct ion  wi th  HCW, serv ice  user  representat ives  and 
managers to  agree  the  serv ice  spec i f i cat ion  and 
e l ig ib i l i ty cr i ter ia .   

 

Tudalen 5



Recommendation 2  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government  should  draw 
up a  s tra tegic  p lan,  to  g ive  d irec t ion to  the  serv ice 
over  the  coming years.  Th is  should  be  done in 
conjunct ion with  the  serv ice  providers,  users,  
s takeholders and other  in terested par t ies.   

 
Work led by NLIAH and DSU in  conjunct ion  wi th  servi ce 
users  and representat ives  as  we l l  as  a  broad range of  
c l in ical  re ferrers  have  over the  last  18 months 
developed serv ice  pr ior i t ies  which  are  be ing monitored 
on a  60 day cycle .  These  object ives  have  been adopted 
in  both  the  North  and South  serv ices  to  ensure  equ i ty 
of  serv ice  improvement across Wales .  
These inc lude  report ing Referra l  to  Treatment 
Gu ide l ines  (RTT) ,  capacity and demand assessment,  a  
new referra l  form and new and more  e ff i c ient  ways o f  
work ing .  

 
Recommendation 3   
We recommend that  the  st rategic  p lan should  address 
the  need for  bet ter  in tegrat ion of  the  serv ice  wi th  the 
communi ty  and other  NHS serv ices and wi th  soc ia l  
serv ices.   
 
A range of  in i t iat ives  have  taken place  wi th  more 
p lanned for  the future .  Current ly ALAS sen ior  c l in i cal  
staf f  meet  wi th  A l l  Wales profess ional  groups  to he lp  us  
gain  a  greater understanding of  their  needs .  Th is  
inc ludes  paediatr ic  Occupat ional  and Physiotherapy 
managers,  T issue  Viabi l i ty  nurses,  Distr ict  Nurse  
managers .  Train ing for  referrers i s  de l ivered to  a  range 
of  d isc ip l ines  and students  across  Wales –  over  1000 to 
date .  Jo int  c l in ics  w i th  paediatr ic  therapists  are 
organised in  Cardi f f ,  Brecon and other  centres .  The  
number  and range of  venues  for  communi ty c l in ics  has 
been increased.   
Band 6  occupat ional  therapists  rotate  into  the  serv ice 
for  year  long secondments  which  trains  them to  a  h igh 
level  of  expert ise .   
 
 
Recommendation 4  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government  ensures  that  
the arrangements  for  a  res tructured wheelcha ir  serv ice 
incorporates  c lear  respons ibi l i t ies  and l ines  of  
accountab i l i ty  for  serv ice de l ivery .   
 
The Cardi f f  serv ice  has  c lear  l ines of  respons ib i l i ty to 
the  Execut ive  Board of  Directors  in  Card i f f  and Vale  UHB 

Tudalen 6



with  d irect  l ine  management to  the  Execut ive  Director  o f  
Therapies  and Health  Sc iences .  Serv ice  de l ivery for  a l l  
specia l i t ies  is  reported v ia month ly meet ings wi th  Welsh 
Health  Spec ia l ist  Services  Committee (WHSSC)  and 
quarter ly meet ings  wi th  the Partnersh ip  Board .  Every 
specia l ist  profess ional  sect ion  has  a  c l in ical/technical  
or  engineer ing lead.    

Tudalen 7



 
Recommendation 5  
We recommend that  new performance measures should 
focus  on outcomes for  users,  tak ing account  of  the i r  
w ider  needs.   
 
Qual i ty indicators  have  been agreed and are  reported to 
the Partnersh ip Board .  These come under  the  headings 
of  
  

•  Provis ion  of  serv ice in formation to a l l  users  
•  A qual i ty service 

1  Staff  qua l i f i cat ions and CPD 
2  Assessment 
3  Del ivery and maintenance 
4  User  feedback 

•  Care  pathway 
 
Key performance ind icators l ink to the  Nat ional  Service 
Framework for  Ch i ldren,  wait ing  t imes  for  del ivery of  
equ ipment  and Referra l  to  Treatment  Gu ide l ines (RTT)  etc  
When the  or ig ina l  rev iew was undertaken our  percentage 
compl iance  for  the  de l ivery of  standard cha irs  w ith in  21 
days was 70%.  Th is  now stand at  95% compl iance  for  
del ivery within  5 days .    
Work begun  as a  p i lot  scheme in  which  “Rea Ass ist”  
cha irs  are provided for  spina l/head injury pat ients  in  
ITU in i t ia l ly  in  Card i f f  and now ro l led  out  to  inc l ude  
Swansea has  saved hundreds  of  bed days by prov id ing  a 
specia l ist  chair  w i th in  48hours .  The  pat ients  are ab le  to 
s i t  out  ear l ier  ,  improving posture,  access  to  phys io and 
rehabi l i tat ion .  
 
Recommendation 6  
We recommend that  the  Minis ter  should  keep under 
rev iew the  planned performance measures and targets  
and should in t roduce sanct ions for  non-compl iance.   
 
See  response  to recommendat ion  number  5 .  NL IAH and 
DSU have  been support ing ALAS to  ensure  wai t ing  t imes 
are  measured in accordance wi th  Referral  to  Treatment  
process  measures .   DSU  are  conduct ing assessments  in  
both  centres  to  ensure  th is  i s  in  p lace  and have 
supported the  serv ice  in  implement ing a  capac ity and 
demand rev iew for  c l in ica l  in tervent ions .  Th is  mode l  w i l l  
now be ro l led  ou t  across a l l  serv ices .  
 
 
Recommendation 7  

Tudalen 8



We recommend that  the  serv ice  speci f i ca t ion should 
inc lude an act ion p lan,  inc luding targets  and 
mi les tones ,  for  meet ing the  s tandards  in the Chi ldren’s  
NSF on whee lchai rs .   
 
A comprehensive  assessment  has been undertaken in  
conjunct ion  wi th  NL IAH and DSU to  ensure  compl iance .  
The  technical  team at  Card if f  have  further  developed 
the  BEST(Br inging Equ ipment  Serv ices  Together )  IT  
system to  ensure  we are  compl iant  w ith  and report ing to 
NSF standards .  We are  current ly in  shadow format  bu t  
w i l l  go  l i ve on 1 s t  Apr i l .    
 
Recommendation 8   
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government  ensure  that  
the  serv ice  prepares a  communicat ion s trategy  to 
out l ine  how i t  w i l l  improve communicat ion with  users 
and s takeholders .  Th is  communicat ion s t ra tegy should 
be drawn up and introduced as a mat ter  of  urgency .   
 
The service  has worked c lose ly wi th  NL IAH to  improve  
communicat ion  wi th  service  users .  Th is  w i l l  be  taken 
forward in  a number of  ways .  
As  part  o f  the 60 Day Review process,  a  Wales-wide 
Serv ice  User  Engagement  Work stream has  been 
estab l ished wi th  three  years funding from Welsh 
Government .  The  work ing group cons ist ing  of  ALAS,  a  
communi ty therapist  and service  user  members  wi th  the 
express remit  to :  
 
1 .  Ident i fy ef fect ive  ways  to  capture  serv ice  users ’  v iews  

and exper iences 
2 .  Act ive ly gather a  base l ine  of  the  v iews and 

exper iences  of  users  us ing both  quant i tat ive  and 
qual i tat ive  means 

3 .  Prepare  & implement  a  three year  serv ice user  
engagement  strategy us ing the basel ine in formation 
gathered,  to  target  cont inuous  improvement  in  serv i ce  
user  engagement 

 
4 .  Fo l lowing a  compet i t ive  tender ing process  an external  

consu l tancy,  the  “Kafka Br igade”  were  appointed to 
support  the workgroup in  deve lop ing an in -depth  
understanding of  the  user  exper ience dur ing year  one 
of  the  strategy.  In  part ,  the aim of  th is  process was  
a lso  to  begin  creat ing a  cohort  o f  serv ice  users  and 
staf f  who wi l l  go  on to co -des ign future  serv ices 
dur ing the  second year  us ing an Exper ience  Based Co -
Design (EBCD)  advocated by the  Kings  Fund .  The 
f indings  wi l l  a lso  in form a feedback system which  w i l l  

Tudalen 9



be an ongo ing source  of  ins ight  for  ALAS.  I t  is  a lso 
ant ic ipated that  th is  comprehens ive  base l ine work 
wi th  ALAS serv ice  users  wi l l  begin  a  d ia logue  whereby 
the  service  can better  understand how users  prefer  to 
be in formed of  developments  with in  the  serv ice .   

 
As  we l l  as  th is  we have  in formation screens at  the 
Card i f f  Centre  that  are  regu lar ly updated wi th  serv ice  
user  in formation,  each c l in ic  has  user  quest ionnaires 
ava i lable  for  feedback as we l l  as the ALAS webs ite .  
 
Card i f f  has  a lso prepared an over  v iew of  the  serv i ce we  
prov ide in  layman’s  terms which  descr ibes what a 
service  user  can  expect  f rom us  when they are  re ferred 
to  the  service .  Th is  i s  in  f ina l  draft  and wi l l  be  put  on  
the web s i te .  
 
Recommendation 9  
We recommend that  the  communicat ion s t ra tegy  should 
inc lude measures  to  provide  better  in format ion to  users 
general ly ,  but  in  par t icular  on progress wi th in the 
system.  
  
Under  the  ru les  o f  RTT we are  ob l iged to  contact  every 
service  user  to conf i rm they are  happy to accept  the 
appointment  we of fer  them.  Appointment  t imes  and 
venues  are  agreed by te lephone un less we are  unable  to 
make contact  at  which  po int  we wou ld  wr i te  to  the  c l ient  
and or  the  referrer .  To  ensure  we are  compl iant  
appo intments  are  current ly be ing made wi th in  3  weeks 
of  re ferral  to  ensure  the  appointment  for  assessment  i s  
w i th in  6 weeks of  referral .  
Writ ten  in format ion is  current ly be ing reviewed in  
readiness to t rans late into Welsh .   
 
Recommendation 10  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government should 
explore  wi th  the  serv ice ,  vo luntary  organisat ions  and 
char i t ies ,  opt ions  for  prov iding the  best  poss ib le  
in ter im solut ions  for  users  who wi l l  be  wai t ing for  
s ign i f i cant  per iods  for  del ivery  or  maintenance of  a  
chai r .   
 
The service  has met  wi th  Br i t ish  Red Cross  (BRC)  to  
rev iew c loser  work ing opportun it ies .  We have  prov ided 
whee lcha ir  assessment  tra in ing for  their  staf f ,  and  both 
agenc ies  co l lect  and return equ ipment  for  each other .  
Data protect ion  i ssues  prevent  us  f rom giv ing personal  
c l ient  in formation to  BRC.  I t  shou ld  be  noted that  for  
complex  users  an inter im so lut ion  may not  be  su i tab le  

Tudalen 10



and i f  an  inappropr iate seat ing system is  provided,  long 
term harm cou ld  be caused.    
 
South  Wales  ALAS has  deve loped drop- in  c l in ics  at  the 
Card i f f  depot  to  improve  c l ients ’  access  to  t imely 
assessment  and repairs .  We have  a lso  appointed a 
del ivery dr iver  and a  f i t ter  in  West  Wales  which  both  
reduces  trave l  t ime and costs  for  the  service  and a lso 
makes  the service  more avai lable  to the  c l i ents  in  that  
area .  The  serv ice  prov ides  a  365 day emergency ca l l  out  
serv ice  and al l  u rgent  cal l s  are v is i ted wi th in  24 hours .  
Where  poss ib le  i f  a  repair  cannot  be  undertaken 
immediate ly every e f fort  is  made to  provide  a  temporary 
solut ion  for  those  service  users  who are  dependent  on 
their  whee lchair .  
Recommendation 11   
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government should 
conduct  an assessment  of  the  long-term resources 
required to  susta in  improved wait ing t imes;  provide 
regular  rev iews for  some users ;  and to  c lear  the wai t ing 
l is t  backlog in North Wales.  The Government  should 
then make a  c lear  s ta tement  sett ing out  how i t  in tends 
to  meet  these  resource  requi rements  for  the current  
budget  cyc le .   
 
NLIAH has  supported the  serv ice  in  conduc t ing a 
capacity and demand analys is  which  in  South  Wales  has 
ident i f i ed  a  number  of  serv ice improvements .  An 
addit ional  13% of  c l in ical  t ime has  been re leased by the  
appointment of  a  band 2  admin istrator  for  both  the 
c l in ical  and technica l  teams.  We have  increased sate l l i te  
c l in ics ;  introduced one -stop c l in ics  and weekend c l in ics  
and as a resu l t  we  have  reduced wait ing  t imes for  
assessments  for  paediatr ics  to  a  maximum of  6  weeks  
(32 weeks  at  Apr i l  2011)  and adul t  wai t ing  t imes  for  
assessments  to a  maximum of  16 weeks (  44 weeks  in  
Apr i l  2011) .   Work i s  being undertaken to  introduce  an  
of f  l ine  work ing system which  wi l l  enable  staf f  to  review  
and input  data of f  s i te  and re lease even more c l in i ca l  
t ime.   
 
Recommendation 12  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government should 
explore  opportun i t ies  for  jo int  work ing between ALAS 
and organisat ions,  char i t ies ,  communi ty  therap is ts  and 
others,  and that  th is  should  form a  centra l  par t  o f  the 
serv ice’s  s tra tegic  plan.   
 
Work i s  underway to  strengthen re lat ionships  wi th  
ch i ldren’s  char i ty groups  on jo int  t ra in ing for  ch i ldren .  

Tudalen 11



BRS for  co l lect ion  of  equ ipment  and tra in ing of  the ir  
staf f ,  Jo int  c l in ics  are  held in  conjunct ion  wi th 
paediatr ic  therapists ,  meet ing a l l  Wales  profess ional  
groups  l ike  paed iatr ic  Occupat ional  Therapy and 
Physiotherapy managers  and Distr ict  Nurses  and T issue  
Viab i l i ty  nurses .  
  
Recommendation 13  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government  ensures  that  
ef for ts  are made to s treaml ine the  referra ls  process,  
poss ib ly  through the deve lopment  of  on- l ine resources .   
 
A great  dea l  o f  preparatory work has  been undertaken 
wi th  regard to  the  re ferral  form and jo int  meet ings  are 
being fac i l i tated  by NLIAH to complete  th is  work .  A t  
present  on  l ine  re ferrals  are  l imited  because  health  is  
able  to  on ly shared pat ient  ident i f iable  data  between 
NHS establ ishments .  
 
Within  the  NLIAH 60 day review process  a  Referra ls  work 
stream has  been establ ished to  review the  referral  
process  wi th  the a im of  deve loping an improved referral  
form which  i s  consistent  across  both  the  South  and 
North Wales Serv ices .  
 Fo l lowing an audit  o f  re ferra ls  to  South  Wales  rev iewing 
12 months of  re ferra l  data,  5 .6% of  a l l  re ferra ls  were  
returned to  the re ferrer  as  incomplete,  w i th  a further 
22% of  these being returned a  second t ime.  The  audi t  
a lso  ident i f i ed  the  common reasons  why referrals  were 
returned,  one  of  which  be ing the  qual i ty  o f  the  c l i ents  
measurements  g iven .  As  a  resu l t ,  the  redesigned form 
seeks to  c lar i fy the  expected measurement standards  
and an exp lanatory DVD has  been produced for  
re ferrers  by the A l l  Wales  Trainer .  The  DVD is  cu rrent ly 
being tr ia l led  by c l in ic ians  in  the  communi ty to  ensure  
i t  is  f i t  for  i t ’s  purpose .    
 
A  f ina l  workshop to  agree  a  rev ised referral  form for  
p i lot ing  is  current ly be ing arranged and is  ant ic ipated 
to  take  p lace  in  March 2012.  At  th is  meet ing,  Soft  
Opt ions,  the BEST IT  system developers,  w i l l  be 
showcas ing the latest  developments  in  e lectron ic  
re ferrals  to  d iscuss  how th is  cou ld  be  developed in  
future  wi th in  ALAS.   
 
Recommendation 14  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government should 
ensure  that  there  i s  a  suff i c ient  number  of  communi ty  
therap is ts  t ra ined to  under take Level  3 assessments.   
 

Tudalen 12



S ince  the  Rev iew,  the  South  Wales  ALAC has 
systematical ly  reduced paediatr ic  and adu l t  wait ing  
t imes  for  assessment .  The  current  posi t ion  i s  a 6  week 
wai t  for  paed iatr ics  (32 weeks in  Apr i l  2011)  and 16 
weeks  for  adu l ts  (44 weeks  in  Apr i l  2011) .  Th is  has  been 
ach ieved because  of  a  range of  improvements  which  
inc lude :  

•  Improvements  in  the l inks  between the BEST IT 
system and the  ORACLE procurement  system has 
reduced dupl i cat ion  and enabled faster  
order ing .  

•  Deve lopments  in  the  BEST IT system which  
fac i l i tate a more ef f i c ient  note keep ing system. 

•  Appointment  of  admin support  s taff  for  the 
c l in ical  and technica l  teams which  has  freed 
them to under  take  more complex dut ies .   

•  Al l  re ferra ls  are  tr iaged wi th in  24 hours  of  
rece ipt .  

 
With  th is  l eve l  o f  cont inuous  improvement  the need for  
t ra in ing communi ty therapists  in  South  Wales to 
undertake Level  3  assessments is  therefore  no  longer  
requ ired .  
The  service  wou ld  be  unable  to  support  the  knowledge,  
sk i l ls  and expert i se  o f  communi ty staf f  based on other 
s i tes .  There  i s  a  range of  160 seat ing solu t ions  +  
accessor ies  and referrers  must  mainta in  comprehens ive 
product  knowledge to  be  ab le  to  safe ly prescr ibe .  As  
we l l  as  th is  the  c l in ic ian must  be  ab le  to  retain  contact  
w i th  the  c l ient  in  case  prob lems ar ise  and have access 
to the BEST IT system which  ho lds  the pat ient  record .  
 
The  service  has  year  long rotat ional  band 6  posts  which  
enable occupat ional  therapists  f rom other  serv ices to 
gain  a h igh level  o f  expert ise  in  assessment and f i t t ing 
for  postura l  and mobi l i ty  issues .  Th is  sk i l l  i s  then taken 
back out  to  other  areas  and improves  the  qual i ty  of  
re ferrals  and al lows us  to  prescr ibe  straight  from the 
referral .  
“Trusted assessors”  work in  conjunct ion  wi th  the service 
in  sett ings where  c l ients  have  a h igh level  o f  postura l  
prob lems.  These c l in ic ians  have an adequate  knowledge 
of  a  spec i f i c  range of  chairs  to  be  able  to  make 
recommendat ions  direct ly  into the  serv ice .    
.   
The  a l l  Wales  t ra in ing manager  has  trained over  1,000 
nurses  and therapists  to  leve l  1 standard over  the  past  
2  years .  
 

Tudalen 13



NLIAH has  also supported the  Card i f f  based al l  Wales  
t ra in ing manager  in  the  deve lopment  of  a  DVD.  Th is  
DVD resource  i s  intended to  support  the  tra in ing of  
re ferrers  by providing c lear,  expl i c i t  instruct ions  on 
what  measurements  are  requ ired and how these  shou ld  
be  undertaken.  Inaccurate  or  incomplete  measurements 
are  the major  reasons  why referra ls  are  delayed.  I t  is  
ant ic ipated that  there  wi l l  be  a  reduct ion  in  the number  
of  incomplete  or  inaccurate  measurements  lead ing to  a 
qu icker  d ispatch of  equ ipment .  I t  is  essent ia l  for  c l i ent  
safety to have  accurate  measurements .  For  those serv ice 
users  who requ i re  further  assessment  the  improvements 
in  the  accuracy of  th is  in i t ia l  in format ion wi l l  reduce  
delays .  
 
Recommendation 15  
We recommend that ,  as  a  matter  of  urgency,  the  Welsh 
Assembly  Government  should  c lar i fy  and make publ ic  
the  pol ic ies and ar rangements for  jo int  funding wi th 
organisat ions  and indiv iduals .   
 
Loca l  agreements  are  be ing developed,  for  example  w i th 
ch i ldren’s  char i t ies  both  to  provide  tra in ing for  ch i ldren 
and in  jo int  funding for  equ ipment .  
Further  work must  be  undertaken to ensure  that  where  
ALAS costs  are increased due  to  the  s ize  of  counc i l  
accommodation jo int  funding shou ld  be  arranged,  a lso 
in  the  case  of  educat ion  where  jo int  funding cou ld  
reduce  overa l l  costs .  Th is  w i l l  be raised in  re lat ion  to 
d iscuss ion  in  the Partnersh ip Board 
 
 
 
Recommendation 16  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government  c lar i f ies  and 
makes  publ ic  i t s  po l i cy  and arrangements for  the 
maintenance and repa ir  o f  equipment  bought  by 
ind iv idua ls .   
 
The service  offers  a  wide  range of  cha irs  and 
accessor ies .  Our  c l in ical  and technical  staf f  are  a l l  
t ra ined to  ensure  that  they have  a  h igh leve l  o f  
knowledge to assess,  f i t ,  mainta in  and repair  the  
equ ipment .  There  are  current ly 160 chairs  in  the  range,  
we ho ld  over  200 commonly used parts  in  stock and can 
access other  parts  in  a t imely fash ion .  
 We do not  have  the  product  knowledge and cou ld  not  
ho ld  the  parts  for  the  fu l l  range of  chairs  ava i lab le  on 
the  market .  I f  we  undertook this  ro le  we wou ld  not  be 
able  to  guarantee  the  safety of  the  c l ient  or  their  

Tudalen 14



equ ipment .  We wou ld  not  be  ab le  to  purchase at  the 
pr ices we have negot iated for  the current  range .  
  
Recommendation 17  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government should 
explore  fur ther  the  possibi l i ty  o f  pool ing exis t ing 
budgets,  par t i cular ly  educat ion budgets,  in  re lat ion to 
the provis ion of  equipment for  users.   
 
The serv ice  i s  in  agreement  wi th th is  and wi l l  pursue  the  
potent ia l  v ia the Partnersh ip Board .   
 
Recommendation 18  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government  should  rev iew 
arrangements  for  shor t  term loans  of  wheelcha irs  which 
are  not  prov ided by  ALAS to ensure  that  th is  serv ice  
provis ion is  adequately  resourced.   
 
This  work has  been led  by North  Wales  but  supplemented 
by meet ings  held  local ly .  Assessment  tra in ing has  been 
prov ided for  Br i t i sh  Red Cross staf f  
 
Recommendation 19   
We a lso  recommend that  the  Welsh Government should 
ensure  c loser  jo int  working between ALAS and those 
providing shor t-term loans of  wheelchai rs ,  part i cular ly  
the Br i t ish Red Cross.   
 
As we l l  as  the  work undertaken at  nat ional  leve l  the 
service  has  met wi th  Br i t i sh  Red Cross (BRC)  to  rev iew 
c loser  working opportun i t ies .  We have  provided 
whee lcha ir  assessment  tra in ing for  their  staf f ,  and  both 
agenc ies  co l lect  and return equ ipment  for  each other .  
Data protect ion  i ssues  prevent  us  f rom giv ing personal  
c l ient  in formation to BRC 
 
 
Recommendation 20  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government should 
ensure  that  the  arrangements for  maintenance and 
repai r  in  Cardi f f  ALAC and Wrexham ALAC be kept  under 
rev iew,  to  ensure  that  the  serv ice  i s  meet ing the 
necessary s tandards.   
 
South  Wales  ALAS brought  the approved repairer  serv ice 
in  house  in  February 2010.  Improvements  in  service 
have been implemented s ince then which  inc lude :  
 

•  Cl ients  are  ab le  to  drop into  the  depot  for  repairs  –
feedback from cl ients  i s  very posi t ive .  

Tudalen 15



•  One stop c l in ics  are  held  at  the  depot  where 
su i table  c l ients  are  assessed and issued wi th  
equ ipment on the  same day.  

•  Weekend c l in ics  are he ld at  the depot .  
•  Standard chairs  –  previous ly 70% de l ivered in 21 

days,  now 95% with in  5 days .  
•  Rehabi l i tat ion  engineer ing i s  about  to  be 

accommodated on the  same s i te  as  the  whee lcha ir  
serv ice  which  wi l l  improve c l in ical  pathways,  
prov ide  improved career  pathways and fac i l i tate 
c loser  working .  

•  A del ivery dr iver  and a  f i t ter  have  been employed 
and based in  West  Wales,  improving the  serv ice  to 
c l ients  in  that  area .  

•  Al l  outstanding repairs  are  wai t ing  del ivery of  
equ ipment to the  depot .  

 
Recommendation 21  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government should 
ensure  that  ALAS consul ts  users  and s takeholders  on 
thei r  needs in  advance of  any  future  tender ing process 
for  maintenance and repai r  contracts .   
 
Serv ice  user  representat ives  were  fu l ly  involved in  the 
process  to  se lect  the  new range of  whee lcha irs  in  the 
contract  that  w i l l  commence on 1/4/2012 and wi l l  r un  
for  3  years .  The  Card if f  Rehabi l i tat ion  Engineer ing  
department  has a  user  group  cha ired by one  of  their  
c l ients  who is  a lso a member  of  the Partnersh ip Board .   
The  service  u ser  engagement  work stream (see 
recommendat ion  8 )  consu l tat ion  undertaken in  
partnersh ip  wi th  the  “Kafka Br igade”  w i l l  a lso  gather 
any service user  exper iences  re levant  to  th is  
recommendat ion .   
 
 
Recommendation 22  
We recommend the  Welsh Government  should  ensure 
that  regular  rev iews for  users  are  de l ivered,  par t i cular ly  
for  chi ldren and other  users  wi th changing condi t ions .   
 
Regular  rev iews are  in  p lace  for  Rehabi l i tat ion  
Engineer ing Un it  serv ice users,  because  of  the 
complexi ty of  the ir  c l ient ’s  condit ions .  Ch i ldren are 
rev iewed twice a year,  adu l ts  once a year .  
In  South  Wales  ALAS is  of fer ing the  parent  /carer  and 
the  referr ing therapist  the opportun i ty to br ing ch i ldren 
for  rev iew once  a  year .  Feedback from paediatr ic  
therapists  i s  very posi t ive 

Tudalen 16



 
Recommendation 23  
We recommend that  the  Welsh Government should 
ensure  that  ALAS explores  jo int  working opportun it ies 
wi th  char i t ies  to prov ide t ra in ing for  users.   
 
Funding has  been a l located to  support  t ra in ing of  
serv ice  users,  in  part icu lar  certain  Paed iatr ic  c l i ents .  
A  tender  i s  be ing drafted  in  conjunct ion  wi th  NL IAH to 
prov ide th is  t ra in ing across  Wales .  
Card i f f  ALAS staf f  are  being tra ined to  prov ide  weekend 
tra in ing for  ch i ldren at  the  whee lchair  depot .  Th is  is  on 
a vo luntary basis .  
 
  

Tudalen 17



Tudalen 18



Tudalen 19



Tudalen 20



North Wales Posture & Mobility  Health & Social Care Inquiry 

Written Evidence  March 2012 

Health and Social Care Committee 

HSC(4)-09-12 paper 2 

One-day inquiry on wheelchair services in Wales – Evidence 
from North Wales Artificial Limb and Appliances Service 

 
Betsi Cadwaladr University LHB 

 
Written evidence for the Health and Social Care Committee One 

Day Inquiry on Wheelchair Services in Wales March 2012 
 

Introduction 
 
In response to the recommendations of the 2010 Health, Wellbeing 
and Local Government Committee Report on Wheelchair services a 
considerable amount of work has been undertaken and is ongoing to 
achieve the outcomes required. This evidence report will aim to 
summarise the efforts, achievements and work in progress and will not 
repeat any evidence provided for the initial inquiry. 
 
All Wales Working 
Several workstreams have been established on an All Wales level to 
progress and monitor compliance with the recommendations. The 
North Wales service has been actively involved in these workstreams, 
which have been facilitated via NLIAH and DSU, with performance 
monitored via the Partnership Board. These activities have been carried 
out in conjunction with service users and representatives as well as a 
broad range of clinical referrers and have been monitored using a 45 
day cycle method. Joint working is outlined in the table below showing 
the activity adopted in North Wales and mapped to the 
recommendations. 
 
Workstream Activity Recommendatio

n 
Waiting List Management 

• Adopted RTT rules 
• Targeting of long waiters 
• Software developed to manage RTT pathway 
• Staff trained in RTT rules and software 
• Reduction of lists 
• Direct booking of appointments - client choice 
• Validation of lists and data 
• NLIAH and DSU have been supporting services 

to ensure waiting times are measured in line 
with RTT. DSU is conducting audits to ensure 
these are in place. 

 
6 
 
 
 
 
8 
 
 
6 

Capacity & Demand 
• Roll out project planned to start in April 2012 

 
 

Tudalen 21



North Wales Posture & Mobility  Health & Social Care Inquiry 

Written Evidence  March 2012 

• This is expected to help us understand the 
future resource requirement for the service  

11 

Service User Engagement 
• 3 year project funded by Welsh Government 
• Services have been involved in working groups 

with service users to develop communication 
strategy 

• User consultation progressing to capture 
users’ views and the project will target 
continuous improvement in service user 
engagement 

• Ongoing work will establish a platform for the 
service to involve users in future planning 

8 

Referrals 
• Streamlined procedures for handling referrals 
• New All Wales referral form being developed 
• Working towards electronic referral 
• Training of referrers 

 
 
13 

Training 
• Some Level 3 training has been carried out but 

this is on hold as the focus shifts to training 
the referrers. There is a need to review the 
benefits of level 3 training in the community 
due to requirements for keeping up to date  

• Training for referrers is delivered across Wales 
• A tender is being drafted by NLIAH to provide 

training for users across Wales 

 
14 
 
 
 
 
3 
 
23 

Service Specification 
• Contributing to the development of an All 

Wales service specification 
• Performance indicators have been developed 

and monitored  
• Working on development of decision making 

matrix for clarity of provision 

 
1 
 
 
 
8 

Partnership Board 
• Joint working with a range of organisations 

and individuals on the Partnership Board 
• High level of commitment from the service 

and Health Board with active participation 
from Chief of Staff, Clinical Director and 
Assistant Director of Therapies & Health 
Sciences 

• Performance targets and monitoring at 
quarterly meetings 

• Quality indicators have been agreed  and 
reported to Partnership Board 

1, 2, 4, 5 

Contracts 
• Joint working between services and service 

 
21 

Tudalen 22



North Wales Posture & Mobility  Health & Social Care Inquiry 

Written Evidence  March 2012 

users to procure recent wheelchair contract 
• Joint working established for current cushion 

contract 
 
 
North Wales Posture & Mobility Service 
The North Wales service has been working hard to make improvements 
in line with the recommendations. In addition to targeting waiting 
times for children, effort has been focussed on establishing the 
foundations for improvement (in terms of structure and process) and 
we expect to realise further benefits over the next 12 months. The 
following table outlines some additional examples of ongoing work 
and achievements in North Wales; they are mapped to the 
recommendations for evidence of progress. 
 
Activity Recommendation 
Significant progress with NSF Referral to assessment 
time of 6 weeks for children achieved. Delivery to 
fitting time of 8 weeks forecast to be achieved by 
end of March  

7 

Implementation of software to allow management of 
pathways to RTT rules 

7 

Process mapping of referral and admin pathways 
undertaken to streamline services and increase 
capacity (further process mapping planned in March 
2012) 

Continuous 
Improvement 

Organisational restructuring by bringing REU and 
ALAS into a single Posture & Mobility directorate led 
by a Clinical Director appointed in Oct 2011 with 
clear lines of responsibility via the Chief of Staff to 
the Executive Director of Therapies & Health Science 

4 

Working with community therapy services to 
improve integration via regular meetings, rotational 
posts, secondment opportunities, training, 
supervision 

3, 12 

Developing detailed operating instructions and 
criteria 

Continuous 
Improvement 

Developing user links e.g. Disability Sports Wales, 
MS Users Forum 

8 

Improved communication with Approved Repairer 
service, monitoring of performance and improving 
service delivery  

• Service provided for fast delivery of loan chair 
if repairs cannot be done immediately 

• Higher stock levels of parts to avoid delays  
• Quarterly review meetings held and monthly 

reports received monitoring performance 
• Customer survey planned for April - Jun 2012 
• Retendering process currently underway 

 
 
 
10 
 
10 
20 
 
21 

Tudalen 23



North Wales Posture & Mobility  Health & Social Care Inquiry 

Written Evidence  March 2012 

involving service users and including 
specifications to improve delivery of service 

Joint clinics established between Rehab Engineering 
and Wheelchair therapists 

3 

Daily duty therapist in place to deal with referrals 
and queries to reduce delays and improve 
communication 

9 

Additional clinic sites established 3 
97% of standard chairs are delivered within 21 days 
(target 95%) 

Continuous 
Improvement 

Maximum referral to assessment time for adults has 
reduced from 23 months to 15 months and is 
forecast to be 12 months by end of March 

Continuous 
Improvement 

Referral to assessment time for powered wheelchairs 
has reduced from 12 months to 8 months and work 
is ongoing to ensure further reduction in waiting 
times 

Continuous 
Improvement 

Information pack for clients on the website 8 
Communication with Whizz Kidz and meeting 
planned to discuss working better together e.g. on 
joint funding and training for children 

12 
15 

Reorganisation of admin systems are in progress to 
streamline the processes and provide better 
communication with clients 

Continuous 
Improvement 

8 
All existing clients can be re-referred into the 
service, children will be seen within 6 weeks whether 
new or re-referral 

22 

Assistance provided from CPG Performance team 
showing evidence of commitment from Health Board 
to service redesign and improvement  

Continuous 
Improvement 

 
 
Future Progress Required 
It is recognised that we are continuously improving the service and we 
have focussed our attention on some priority areas initially. The 
following table outlines areas of the recommendations and general 
improvement still required. 
 
Activity Recommendation 
Additional funding was provided in 2011 for the 
paediatric service; however, further resources are 
required to sustain and progress improvements in 
adult services. Historically waiting times have been 
longer in North Wales and recurrent funding is 
required to bring these down to acceptable levels for 
adults.  

11 

Further exploring of options for joint funding in 
relation to equipment for service users 

17 

Further consideration regarding regular reviews for 
existing service users, in particular for children and 

22 

Tudalen 24



North Wales Posture & Mobility  Health & Social Care Inquiry 

Written Evidence  March 2012 

those with changing conditions 
Work needs to be done to establish and monitor 
meaningful outcome measures 

5 

Further streamlining of processes and patient 
pathways 

Continuous 
Improvement 

Ongoing development of IT solutions to support 
improvements and changes 

Continuous 
Improvement 

Ongoing work on communications via the user 
engagement workstream and between the service 
and all stakeholders 

8,9 

 
Summary 
The overall picture is one of significant progress and achievement; the 
NSF access targets for children are being achieved and with further 
resources a similar improvement can be achieved for adult services. 
There is now a culture of continuous improvement within the service; 
the foundations have been set to achieve further improvements with 
the client at the centre of service provision and design. We are proud 
of the achievements to date and are looking forward to progressing at 
pace over the next 12 months. 

Tudalen 25



 1 

Health and Social Care Committee 

 

HSC(4)-09-12 paper 3 

One-day inquiry on wheelchair services in Wales – Evidence 
from Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee (WHSSC) 

 

 
 

 

Response to the National Assembly for Wales’s 

Health and Social Care Committee One Day Inquiry  

on Wheelchair Services 

 

 

 

Purpose of Paper  

 

This paper provides evidence to the Health & Social Care Committee’s  inquiry into 

the wheelchair service, on the extent to which the recommendations made by the 

Third Assembly’s Health, Wellbeing and Local Government Committee’s Report on 

Wheelchair Services in Wales, have been implemented. 

 

Background 

 

The Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee (WHSSC) is a joint sub committee 

of the 7 Health Boards in Wales. Health Boards have delegated their responsibility for 

planning and funding specialised services, including the Artificial Limb and Appliance 

Services, to WHSSC. WHSSC funds the provision of these services within Abertawe 

Bro Morgannwg University Health Board, Betsi Cadwaldr University Health Board and 

Cardiff and Vale University Health Board.   

 

Partnership Board 

 

Following the release of the final report of the All Wales Posture and Mobility Review,  

the Welsh Government asked the Director of Specialised Services to establish the All 

Wales Posture and Mobility Partnership Board. One of the recommendations of the 

review was the establishment of the Partnership Board to focus on the auditing of 

quality standards and delivery of the key performance indicators, as a measure of the 

quality service delivery.  

 

Eitem 2b

Tudalen 26



 2 

The Partnership Board has met on four occasions. It is chaired by Daniel Phillips, 

Director of Planning, WHSSC.  The Terms of Reference and Membership for the Board 

is attached as Annex (i).   

 

The Partnership Board membership was extended to include the Delivery & Support 

Unit (DSU) and the National Leadership & Innovation Agency for Healthcare (NLIAH) 

to ensure that all plans for service improvement for wheelchair services are 

coordinated  through the Partnership Board, although the accountability for 

implementation of some of the recommendations for the review are outside the 

remit of  WHSSC.     

 

The Partnership Board includes representation from service users, Health Boards, 

WHSSC, Local Education Authorities and Social Services.  It is attended by the Welsh 

Government policy lead for the Posture and Mobility Service.  

 

 

Service Improvement Programme 

 

In the Autumn of 2010, the Posture and Mobility Service commenced a service 

improvement programme, with the support of DSU and NLIAH.  The purpose of this 

programme is to implement specific recommendations of the Review.  NLIAH 

facilitated the selection of priorities for the first phase of this programme.   

 

A detailed progress report against each of the recommendations of the Review was 

presented to the Partnership Board in October 2011.  Some of the key areas of 

progress include: 

• Developments to improve waiting list management: 

o Agreement of definitions for measuring referral to delivery 

o Systems in place to enter all patients on waiting list within 24 hrs of 

receipt of referral, ability to actively monitor long waits/early warning 

systems/trigger points 

• Upgrade of IT systems to support waiting list management   

• Unification of IT system across Rehabilitation Engineering and ALAS  

• Establishing satellite clinics 

• Agreement to commence joint assessments with community therapists 

• Changes in skill mix/allocation of duties introduced as a result of analysis of 

duties untaken for capacity and demand analysis  

 

A update was presented to the Partnership Board on the 1st March and a further 

update will be presented to each future meeting.  

 

 

Waiting times 

 

The Welsh Government has invested a recurrent resource of approximately £2m from 

2011/12 to support improvement in the wheelchair service, with particular emphasis 

on delivering the waiting times standard in the Children and Young People’s National 

Tudalen 27



 3 

Service Framework (NSF) (6 weeks referral to assessment, 8 weeks assessment to 

delivery).   

 

Since February 2011 there have both centres have made significant reductions in 

waiting times for both adults and children. The improvement for children is notable, 

as in February 2011 children were waiting in access of 32 weeks for assessment. By 

the end of March, it is expected that their waiting times will have reduced to 6 weeks. 

 

 

Waiting Times Definitions 

 

One of the historical challenges to the service was lack of clear definitions to measure 

waiting times and linked IT system. In the meeting in July, the Partnership Board 

agreed definitions to apply to the Posture and Mobility Service.    

 

This guidance have been developed by the DSU in conjunction with the Posture and 

Mobility Service,  as part of a work stream of the service improvement programme. 

The implementation of these definitions has now enabled the service to report robust 

waiting times, within a framework consistent with those applied to other areas of 

healthcare.    

 

 

Service specification  

 

The Partnership Board has established a work stream, led by Clive Sparkes, Chief of 

Staff, Therapies and Clinical Support Programme Group, Betsi Cadwaladr University 

Health Board, to make sure that service users are clear on what equipment is 

provided by the Posture and Mobility Service.   

 

Existing access criteria state that the service will provide equipment to meet essential 

posture and mobility.  The workstream will also explore options for delivering a 

service that is able to address the broader social and lifestyle requirements of users 

(noting that with an increasing range of equipment available, there is also an 

increasing ability and demand to maximise individual potential).   

 

The Partnership Board has recognised that these options must be explored within the 

context of a fixed budget.  Work on this is well advanced, and the final phase is due 

to conclude in Autumn 2012. 

 

 

User Representative Engagement  

 

In October 2011, the Partnership Board approved a proposal to take forward the 

Service User Workstream, with three years funding provided by the Welsh 

Government. The workstream is overseen by the Partnership Board but reports to the 

Welsh Government.  The aim of the workstream is to develop a system that facilitates 

Tudalen 28



 4 

improved engagement with service users in order to inform the ongoing and future 

development of the wheelchair service. The remit of the working group is to: 

 

• Identify effective ways to capture service users’ views and experiences 

• Actively gather a baseline of the views and experiences of users using both 

quantitative and qualitative means 

• Prepare & implement a three year service user engagement strategy using the 

baseline information gathered, to target continuous improvement in service 

user engagement 

 

 

The Partnership Board has made significant effort, over it’s four meetings, to ensure 

that the service user representative can contribute effectively to it’s work and that the 

user experience is at the centre of service provision.  

 

 

Quality Indicators   

 

Quality Indicators and Key Performance Indicators were developed through the 

Wheelchair Services Review. A self assessment against the Quality Indicators was 

completed by both centres, and was presented to the Partnership Board in October 

2011.  

 

The self assessments revealed that both centres had already achieved the majority of 

indicators. The Partnership Board has agreed action plans with both centres to ensure 

that all of the indicators can be achieved by September 2012. 

 

A report will be submitted to the Welsh Government at year end that sets out the  

waiting times achieved by 31st March.  

 

 

Conclusion  

 

Following the Posture and Mobility Review, a significant amount of work has been 

undertaken by the ALAS service in implementing the recommendations. The net 

effect of which has been to transform the way in which the posture and mobility 

services are delivered, most notably through improved data management processes 

which together with the additional funding from the Welsh Government has resulted 

in dramatic sustained reductions in waiting times. The development of the 

Partnership Board has ensured that the services can now be audited against the 

delivery of quality standards and the key performance indicators, and the 

coordination of that all plans for service improvement for wheelchair services. 

 

 

 

                                                                                     

 

Tudalen 29



 5 

 

 

 

                                      

 

 

 

Annex (i) 

 
 
 
 

All Wales Posture and Mobility Service 
 

Partnership Board 
 
 

Terms of Reference 
 
 
 
 

1.0 Introduction 

 
This paper establishes the All Wales Posture and Mobility 
Service Partnership Board as an Advisory Group to the 
Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee (Joint 
Committee). 
 
 

2.0 Accountability 

 
The Partnership Board is an Advisory Group to the Welsh 
Health Specialised Services Committee.   
 
The Posture and Mobility Service is part of the 
Neurosciences and Complex Conditions Programme Group 

Tudalen 30



 6 

within the planning structures of the Welsh Health 
Specialised Services Committee management team.  The 
Partnership Board will provide advice to the Joint 
Committee through the Neurosciences and Complex 
Conditions Programme Group.     
 
 
 

3.0 Purpose 

 
 
The Posture and Mobility Service is planned and funded by 
the Local Health Boards through the Welsh Health 
Specialised Services Committee (Joint Committee).   
 
The purpose of the Partnership Board is described in the 
All Wales Posture and Mobility Service Review (October 
2010):   
 
It is recommended that a partnership board is established 
in order to audit the service against the quality indicators 
and to review and refresh the indicators on an annual 
basis. 
 
 

4.0 Terms of Reference 

 
 
The Terms of Reference of the Partnership Board are as 
follows: 
 

• To advise the Joint Committee with regard to the 
Quality Standards and Key Performance Indicators 

• To review performance against the agreed Quality 
Indicators and Key Performance Indicators, and 
report to LHBs through the Joint Committee 

• To revise, as the Board deems appropriate, the 
nature and target levels of the Quality and Key 
Performance Indicators, and to advise the Joint 
Committee of any changes proposed 

Tudalen 31



 7 

• To advise the Joint Committee on the scope and 
eligibility criteria for the Posture and Mobility Service 

• To provide advice to the Joint Committee on the 
specification for the Posture and Mobility Service 

• To provide a forum for communication and discussion  
between the providers of the service and its 
stakeholders 

• To promote understanding between the Posture and 
Mobility Service and its stakeholders 

• To support the provision of a high quality and 
responsive Posture and Mobility Service for Wales  

 
 
 

5.0 Task and Finish Groups 

 
The Partnership Board may establish Task and Finish 
groups.    
 
 
 

6.0 Membership 

 
Membership will be drawn from across the wide range of 
stakeholders of the Posture and Mobility Service (service 
users, Third Sector groups, Social Services, Education 
Authorities, Local Health Boards) 
 

Name Designation Organisation 

Dan Phillips, Chair  Director of 
Planning 

Welsh Health 
Specialised 
Services 
Committee 

Fiona Jenkins Director of 
Therapies and 
Health Science 

Cardiff and Vale 
UHB 

Clive Sparkes Chief of Staff, 
Therapies and 
Clinical Support 
Programme Group 

Betsi Cadwaladr 
UHB 

Tudalen 32



 8 

Chrissie Hayes Director of 
Planning 
 

Powys tHB 

Stuart Davies Director of 
Finance 
 

WHSSC 

tbc  Medical/Nursing 
Director  

to represent all 
LHBs 

Andrew Fordham Flintshire CBC Representing 
Directors of 
Education 

Mark Jones Wrexham CBC Representing 
Directors of Social 
Services 

Damian Chick 
 

Service user 
representative 

 

Emma Reeves 
 

Service user 
representative 

 

Rachel Jones 
 

Service user 
representative 

 

Michael Butterfield 
 

Service user 
representative 

 

Vin West 
 

Service user 
representative 

 

Henry Langen 
 

Service user 
representative 

 

Karen Beattie 
 

Service user 
representative 

 

Lynne Hill 
 

Service user 
representative 

Policy Director, 
Children in Wales 

Lee Ellery Service user 
representative 

 

Pam Mainwaring Head of ALAC Betsi Cadwaladr 
UHB 

Helen Hortop Head of ALAS Cardiff and Vale 
UHB 

Nigel Shapcott Clinical Director of 
Medical Physics 

Betsi Cadwaladr 
UHB 

Gareth Atkins Head of 
Rehabilitation 

Abertawe Bro 
Morgannwg UHB 

Tudalen 33



 9 

Engineering 

Luke Archard 
 

Specialised 
Planner for 
Neurosciences 
and Complex 
Conditions 

Welsh Health 
Specialised 
Services 
Committee 

In attendance 

Alison Strode Therapy Advisor 
for Wales (and 
policy lead for 
posture and 
mobility services)  

Directorate for 
Public Health and 
Health 
Professions, 
Welsh Assembly 
Government 

Liz Singer Associate Director National 
Leadership and 
Innovation 
Agency for 
Healthcare 

James Ross / Sue 
Rowe 

Associate Director Delivery Support 
Unit 

 
 
 
 

7.0 Partnership Board Meetings 

 
 
The Role of Chair 
 
The Welsh Assembly Government has asked that the 
Welsh Health Specialised Services Committee Chair the 
Partnership Board.  The Director of Planning, WHSSC, has 
been asked to act as Chair. 
 
Engagement 
 
The Chair must ensure that the Partnership Board’s advice 
on all matters brought before it is given in an open, 
balanced, objective and unbiased manner.  In turn, 
individual Group members must ensure that their 

Tudalen 34



 10 

contribution to the Group’s decision making is based upon 
the best interests of users of the Posture and Mobility 
Service.     
 
The Partnership Board will be considered quorate when 
51% of total membership and at least 3 user 
representatives are present.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.0 Secretariat 

 
  
The function of secretariat to the Partnership Board will be 
undertaken by the Welsh Health Specialised Services 
Committee through the Planner for the Neurosciences and 
Complex Conditions Programme.  This will include 
arrangements for Partnership Board meetings, preparation 
of papers and coordination of actions agreed by the 
Board.    
 
 
 

9.0 Frequency of Meetings 

 
The Partnership Board will meet at least biannually.  The 
meetings will be held alternately between South and North 
Wales augmented by video conferencing. 
 
 
 

10.0 Members’ Expenses 

 
Members of the Partnership Board who are employees of 
statutory and third sector organisations, and who attend 
the Partnership Board meetings as part of their normal 

Tudalen 35



 11 

working role, should apply to their own organisations for 
payment of expenses.  
  
Members of the Partnership Board who are not employees 
of statutory or third sector organisations may apply to 
WHSSC for reimbursement of out of pocket expenses such 
as travelling expenses, child care or other care costs, 
incurred in attending Partnership Board meetings.  
 
 
 
 

11.0 Review 

 
These terms of reference shall be reviewed annually by 
the Partnership  Board. 
 

 

 

 

Tudalen 36


	Agenda
	2a Safbwynt darparwr y GIG
	Papur 1 Atodiad (Saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 2 (Saesneg yn unig)

	2b Safbwynt y cynllunydd

